Regular Meeting
Monday, March 15, 2021
6:00 pm
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled March 15,
2021.

Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Ron Cummings, Larry McLaughlin,
Tray Taylor, Alex Kehayes and Ellis Lawrence.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith, County Attorney
Lauren Arizaga-Womble and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance.

Commissioner Taylor then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda
Ms. Stallings noted a request to amend the agenda to closed session for contract negotiations.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the agenda as amended. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comment
Ms. Stallings noted that no public was signed up to speak and none was submitted.

Consent Agenda

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion.
If a County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda and considered separately.

a. Approval of Minutes
Attached are the minutes of the February 9, 2021 CIP Committee, February 15, 2021
Regular meeting, February 24, 2021 Joint School Committee meeting and March 1,
2021 Regular Meeting.

b. Tax Refund Release Report
C&M $733.88 Overpayment
Mears, B. $817.67 Overpayment

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the consent agenda with noted
corrections. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).



Extension Grant Application

Nettie Baugher presented the Board with a request approval of a grant pre-application for the
Extension Service to apply for a grant from the North Carolina Tobacco Trust Fund Commission
in the amount of $600 to purchase coolers for a Chowan County grower to transport produce
from the farm to the Outer Banks. She stated this program is for vacationers in the Outer Banks
to purchase local produce when they check into their rentals. The program is called VSA
(Vacationer Support Ag).

Commissioner McLaughlin asked where are the products sold.

Ms. Baugher stated that the produce is grown in Chowan County and sold in Dare County.
Commissioner McLaughlin asked where are the produce sold.

Ms. Baugher stated that the produce is pre-sold when the vacationer rents their cottage. When
they check into their rental they are provided their bag of produce. She explained how the local
farmer is the aggregator for Chowan County. He grows some of the produce himself and he also
purchases some from other local growers.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked where the $200 contribution will come from.

Ms. Baugher stated that it will come out of the Extension budget.

Commissioner Kehayes asked who will own the coolers.

Ms. Baugher stated that Chowan County Extension will own and control the coolers.
Commissioner Kehayes asked if the aggregator has competition.

Ms. Baugher stated the program is new. She stated this is a lot of work for the aggregator. She
stated she put out an inquiry to her growers to see if there was any interest and this grower
indicated they would like to do this. She stated he does purchase produce from other growers.
Chair Kirby asked if there was interest could there be another aggregator.

Ms. Baugher stated that there is only one allowed however there has not been any other interest.

The Board discussed the process for selection of and ensuring the grower is properly doing the
program.

Ms. Baugher stated that Extension will work with the grower through a co-op.
Mr. Howard stated this is part of the “Got to be NC” program.
Commissioner Evans asked what County receives the sales tax.

Mr. Howard stated it is probably in Dare County.



Commissioner Kehayes stated that government being involved in facilitating free enterprise
activities seems weird to him.

Mr. Howard stated this is a way for government to provide materials to encourage the program to
get successful.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the grant application request.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked if the motion could be amended that Extension provide a
report at the end of the season on how well the program went.

Commissioner Evans stated he would agree to amend his motion to include the statement about
the end of season report.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor of the amended motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).
April Safe Digging Month Proclamation

Chair Kirby stated that the Board is asked to consider a proclamation from the North Carolina
811 which designates the month of April as “North Carolina 811 Safe Digging Month™.

Commissioner Kehayes moved to adopt the proclamation as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Chowan County designating the month of April 2021 as
“North Carolina 811 Safe Digging Month.”

WHEREAS, as utility owners, excavators, designers, and homeowners work to keep pace with
North Carolina’s economic development, it is important to minimize damages to underground
utility lines, danger to workers and the general public, environmental impact, and loss of utility
services to the citizens of North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina 811, a utility service notification center and leader in education
celebrates its 43" year of continuous service to the State, is key to preventing injuries and
damages when excavating; and

WHEREAS, this unique service provides easy, one-call notification about construction and
excavation projects that may endanger workers and jeopardize utility lines while promoting
workplace and public safety, reducing underground utility damage, minimizing utility service
interruptions and protecting the environment; and

WHEREAS, this vital service, which began in 1978 serves the citizens of North Carolina from the
mountains to the coast, educates stakeholders about the need for excavation safety whether
the project is as small as planting a tree to designing and beginning construction on a new
interstate; and



WHEREAS, in 2020, the North Carolina one call system received 2.1 million notification requests
and transmitted over 12.2 million requests, providing protection to utility companies
infrastructure, their employees, excavators, and customers;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Chowan County has designated the month of April
2021 as “North Carolina 811 Safe Digging Month” to encourage all excavators and homeowners
of Chowan County to contact 8-1-1 either by dialing 8-1-1 or contacting NC811 via the webpage
of NC811.org at least three working days prior to digging in order to “Know What’s Below,”
avoid injury, protect the environment, prevent millions of dollars in damages and to remind
excavators that three working days’ notice is the law, for safe digging is no accident, and that
more information may be obtained by visiting www.nc811.org.

Acceptance of bid offer.

Ms. Stallings stated that at the January 19, 2021 the Board authorized the minimum bid offers for
eight properties to go out for upset bid. The first round of bidding ended on Monday, March 8§,
2021. The statutes require the upset bid process to continue until there are no more bids received.
Of the eight (8) properties that went out for upset bid, five of the properties have moved on to a
second round. The clerk will provide the Board with a status update on the five remaining
properties at the meeting as that bidding round will not end until March 29%.

The Board is asked to consider approval of the final bid offers on the following three
properties which did not receive any additional bids in round one.

Off 211 East Hicks Street (PIN 7805-20-81-8536)

Mary Bond was the high bidder for the property in the amount of $1,000. It would be in
order for the Board to formally accept the high bid and authorize staff to proceed with the
sale of the property.

312 Munsee Trail (PIN 6970-08-88-3563)

Vandee Hetherington was the high bidder for the property in the amount of $1,550. It
would be in order for the Board to formally accept the high bid and authorize staff to
proceed with the sale of the property.

309 Coral Lane (PIN 7813-14-44-2727)

Manuela Estecoc and Ryan Harris were the high bidder for the property in the amount of
$1,000. It would be in order for the Board to formally accept the high bid and authorize
staff to proceed with the sale of the property.

Commissioner Cummings stated his support of selling the property. He stated that one of the
buyers is a Habitat for Humanity homeowner and he stated that adding on to their property to
increase the value is a good thing for the homeowner. He then moved to accept the bids as
presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Financial Items
Finance Officer Cathy Smith

Budget Amendments



http://www.nc811.org/

BA 2021-048

Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Capital Projects
32-3810-033-00 Contr. From Capital Reserve 3,451.00
32-8100-603-00  Ag Building Roof/HVAC Repairs 3,451.00
Capital Reserve
33-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriation 3,451.00
33-9800-980-32  Transfer to Capital Projects 3,451.00
Balanced 6,902.00 6,902.00

Justification:

To amend the 2021 budget for Capital Projects to inlude change order from
Owens Roofing for the AG Building Roof project. The change order request

BA 2021-049

was approved by BOCC at the meeting dated 02/15/21.




Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00  *Preservation/Automation 1,448.74
11-4180-298-00  *Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 482.91
11-4180-440-00  *Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 482.91
11-4180-511-00 *C/O - Auto / Pres 482.92
Sheriff's Office
11-3431-232-00  *Sheriff Donations 2,000.00
11-4317-440-00 *Donation - Expense 2,000.00
11-3431-243-00  *KIDS & COPS 1,272.87
11-4317-443-00  *KIDS & COPS Expense 1,272.87
Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00  *Donations - Chowan 525.00
11-3438-894-01  *Donations - Gates 40.00
11-3438-894-02  *Donations - Perquimans 45.00
11-4381-600-00  *Donation - Expense 610.00
11-3438-895-00 *Adoption - Chowan 240.00
11-3438-895-03  *Adoption - Other 160.00
11-4381-441-00  *Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 400.00
Cooperative Ext:
11-3495-370-00  *AG Program Fees Discretionary 100.00
11-4953-440-00  *Ag Program Discretionary 100.00
11-3495-378-00  *4-H Fees Discretionary 45.00
11-4953-448-00  *4-H Fees Discretionary 45.00
11-3495-380-00  *ECA Discretionary 30.00
11-4953-450-00  *ECA Discretionary 30.00
Senior Center
11-3616-533-00  *Reg Fees - Trips 340.00
11-4268-312-00  *TRIPS - Senior Citizens 340.00
11-3616-533-01  *Registration Fees Activities 248.00
11-4268-299-01  *Activities - Dept. Supplies 248.00
11-3616-535-03  *Healthways 153.00
11-4268-352-02  *Healthways 153.00
Balanced 6,647.61 6,647.61
Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2021 85,408.19

Justification:

To amend the 2021 budget to include Discretionary income received
through February 2021.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented.
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Finance Officer Report
Finance Officer Cathy Smith provided the Board with financial reports through the month
of February 2021. A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled March 15, 2021.




Update on JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses

Ms. Smith provided the Board with a report on the current expenses to date for the John
A. Holmes High School project. A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled March
15, 2021.

External Board/Committee Report
Chair Kirby stated that the Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external
boards to which they have been appointed.

Commissioner McLaughlin reported on the CIP Committee.
Commissioner Cummings reported on the Animal Shelter Advisory Board.
Commissioner Evans reported on the TDA Board.

Chair Kirby reported on the ECP Board.

Manager’s Report
County Manager Kevin Howard updated the Board on the following:

- Mr. Howard reported on the work being done at the Library
- He stated that the paving has begun at COA.

Timely and Important Matters
Ms. Stallings noted the upcoming COA campus meetings which will be hosted by zoom.

Closed Session

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to go into closed session in accordance with NCGS
143.318.11.a.5 (contract negotiations). Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed
unanimously (7-0).

The minutes of the closed session are sealed.

Commissioner Cummings moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Adjourn
Being no further business Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



